
Vestavia Hills  
City Council Agenda 
September 8, 2014 

5:00 PM 
 

1. Call to Order  
2. Roll Call 
3. Invocation – Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
4. Pledge Of Allegiance  
5. Announcements, Candidate and Guest Recognition 
6. City Manager’s Report 
7. Councilors’ Reports  
8. Approval of Minutes – August 21, 2014 (Work Session) and August 25, 2014 (Regular 

Meeting) 

Old Business  

9. Resolution Number 4636 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Building And Earth Services For Construction Materials 
Testing And To Authorize Additional Expenditures For Construction Of A Parking Lot 
Adjacent To The Vestavia Hills Library In The Forest   (public hearing) 

New Business  

New Business (Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

10. Resolution Number 4637 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute And 
Deliver An Agreement With Goodwyn Mills And Cawood For Planning And Design 
Services On The “School Site” Portion Of Patchwork Farms    (public hearing)  

First Reading (No Action Taken At This Meeting) 

11. Resolution Number 4639 – A Resolution Ordering The Demolition Of A Building Or 
Structure Located At 2253 Great Rock Road    (public hearing)   

12. Resolution Number 4638 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Take All 
Actions Necessary To Install Landscaping At The Entryways Of Sicard Hollow Athletic 



Complex And To Install Field Naming Signs On  Royal And McCallum Fields  (public 
hearing)   

13. Ordinance Number 2531 – To Establish The Time And Place For Regular City Council 
Meetings; The Procedure For Calling Special Meetings; Establish A Quorum; Establish 
Conduct And Procedures For Council Meetings Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama; Repealing Ordinance Number 2531    (public hearing) 

14. Ordinance Number 2532 – Rezoning – A Portion Of Patchwork Farms PUD To Rezone 
To Patchwork Farms PUD Pursuant To A Certain Application Dated July 10, 2104 And 
Entitled “First Amendment To Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development Zoning 
Application And Development Plan”   (public hearing)  

15. Ordinance Number 2533 – Rezoning – (A Portion Of) 3207 Bearden Court – Rezone 
from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) to Vestavia Hills B-2 (business district); Betty A. 
Thompson and Village Gardens, LLC, Owners; Charles Beavers, Representing 

16. Ordinance Number 2534 – Rezoning – 4019 and 4021 Crosshaven Drive; Lots 2 & 3, 
Cahaba Valley Estates, 1st Addition; Rezone from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) to 
Vestavia Hills O-1 (office); Estate of John Michael, Owner; Phillip Michael, 
Representing 

17. Citizens Comments  
18. Motion For Adjournment 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

WORK SESSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 21, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in a work session on this date at 5:00 PM 
following posting/publishing pursuant to Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work 
session to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
      John Henley 
      George Pierce 
      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Taneisha Tucker, Library Director 
 
 The Mayor welcomed the persons in attendance. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained the proposed budget and highlighted sections, including 
but not limited to: 
 

• Debt Service for new City Hall 
• Prepayment of $500,000 of debt 
• 2% COLA for employees 
• Funding for merit increases for employees 
• No change in health insurance cost for employees 
• Funding strategic areas to address weaknesses demonstrated in the neighborhood 

survey 
• Increase in special revenue funds 
• Realigning Public Services and allowing additional engineering staff 

 
The Council discussed the 90-day reserve fund and suggested studying a separate 

fund for economic development since the 90-day reserve goal has been attained. 
 



City Council Minutes 
Work Session 

Page 2 
 

 The Mayor indicated that the Council needed to go into executive session for the 
possible purchase/sale of property. He stated that the session should last an estimated 20 
minutes and opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to move into executive session for an estimated 20 minutes for the 

purchase/sale of property was made by Mr. Pierce.  Mr. Ammons 
seconded the motion with the roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Henley – yes 
   Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. Ammons – yes 
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes   Motion Carried 
 
 The Council entered into executive session at 5:37 PM.  The Council exited 
executive session at 6:03 PM. 
 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 6:04 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 25, 2014 
 
 The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 5:00 PM.  
The Mayor called the meeting to order and the City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Mayor Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr.  

Steve Ammons, Mayor Pro-Tem 
George Pierce  
John Henley 

      Jim Sharp 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
      Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
      Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
      George Sawaya, Deputy Treasurer 
      Dan Rary, Police Chief 
      Tim Holcomb, Asst. Police Chief 
      Terry Ray, Asst. Fire Chief 
      Brian Davis, Public Services Director 
      Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
 
 Invocation was given by T. Douglas Ferguson, Senior Pastor, Mountaintop 
Community Church.  Boy Scouts from Troop 1 Richard Foo and Chase Adair led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

PROCLAMATION 
 

 The Mayor presented a proclamation designating the month of August, 2014 as 
“Gynecological Awareness Month.”  Mr. Downes read the proclamation and presented it 
to Phyllis Lawrence, Jennifer Smiley and Doris Moody.  These ladies came together 
under “Astateofteal.org” to remind all women of the dangers of gynecological cancers. 

 
 

ANNOUNCEMENTS, GUEST RECOGNITION, CANDIDATES 
 

• Steve Ammons stated that he is running for Jefferson County Tax Collector and 
asked for support in the November general election. 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 2 
 

• Mr. Ammons welcomed Park and Recreation members Susan Compton and 
Tommy Coggin and Park and Recreation Foundation member Leigh Belcher to 
the meeting. 

• Mr. Henley welcomed School Board members, Mark Hogewood to the meeting. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 

• Mr. Downes announced that City administrative offices will be closed on 
Monday, September 1, 2014 in honor of the Labor Day holiday. 

• Mr. Downes updated the Council on the plans for the overall redevelopment of 
Patchwork Farms. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

• Mr. Pierce welomced Karen Odle and Lisa Christopher from the Chamber of 
Commerce to the meeting and indicated that the back-to-school event in Cahaba 
Heights was a success. 

• Mr. Henley stated that the Board of Education is moving forward with a strategic 
plan for the future of the system. 

• Mr. Pierce gave an update on the new drug testing program at the schools. 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
 Mr. Sawaya presented the City’s financial reports for month ending July 2014.  
He read and explained the balances. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The minutes of October 11, 2014 (Regular Meeting) were presented for approval.   
 
MOTION Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of the meeting of 

October 11, 2014 (Regular Meeting) and approve them as presented was 
by Mr. Pierce and second by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 3 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2526 
 
Ordinance Number 2526 –Conditional Use Approval – 4871 Sicard Hollow Road; 

To Extend An Existing 120’ Stealth Monopole (Flagpole) To A 
Maximum Height Of 140’; City Of Vestavia Hills, Owners; New 
Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC D/B/A AT&T Mobility, Andy 
Rotenstreich, Representing (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2526 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Ammons. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that AT&T has requested an extension of the 120’ flagpole at 
the Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex.  This conditional use allows a 20’ extension along 
with the facilities needed for the extension.  He indicated that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission recommended the approval. 
 
 Floyd Gaines was present in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
The Mayor called for the question.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4625 
 
Resolution Number 4625 – A Resolution Authorizing A Special Economic 

Development Agreement By The City Of Vestavia Hills And 
Northport Holdings LLC  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4625 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes explained that this is an economic development agreement between 
the City and Northport Holdings LLC.  He explained the 20-year terms and provisions of 
the agreement. 
 
 Heyward Hosch, Maynard Cooper and Gale, concurred. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and finds no problems. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 4 
 

 Discussion ensued as to the required improvements of the properties, what 
happens if the income isn’t realized, etc. 
 
 The Mayor indicated there needed to be an amendment to accept the current 
version of the contract subject to “clean-up” verbiage by the City’s counsel. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4625 to replace Exhibit B with the 

most current version of the agreement subject to revised language to 
“clean-up” the agreement without changing the meaning of the agreement 
was by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as 
follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. 
 
 Karen Odle, Chamber President, commended the Council on the actions they are 
taking for the completion of Patchwork Farms. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, he closed 
the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4626 
 
Resolution Number 4626 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Construction Of A 

Pedestrian Bridge And Certain Other Improvements At McCallum 
Park  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4626 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that bids were opened for a pedestrian bridge and some other 
trail improvements to McCallum Park.  The recommendation is to accept the lowest 
bidder.  The project is funded by a $50,000 grant, a matching grant from the Parks and 
Recreation Foundation and the remainder is the City’s match. 
 
 Mr. Brady stated that a typographical error occurred and the City’s portion should 
be raised by $1,000. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 5 
 

 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Resolution Number 4626 to for an additional $1,000 was 

by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.   
 
 Leigh Belcher, 2568 Aspen Cove Drive and Executive Director of the Park and 
Recreation Foundation thanked the Council for the action. 
 
 There being no one else to address the Council concerning this request, he closed 
the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4627 
 
Resolution Number 4627 – A Resolution Authorizing A General Fund Budget, A 

Special Fund Budget And A Capital Fund Budget For Fiscal Year 
2014-2015  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4627 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the proposed budget was discussed in detail at a recent 
work session.  He highlighted certain portions of the proposed budget and answered any 
questions posed by the City Council. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 6 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4628 
 
Resolution Number 4628 – A Resolution Electing To Provide A One-Time Bonus To 

City Retirees Pursuant To Alabama Act No. 2014-429  (public 
hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4628 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated this Resolution allows the Retirement Systems of Alabama to 
pay the City’s retirees a one-time bonus.  He explained the calculation of the amounts of 
each bonus and when/how it would be paid along with the expense to the City.  He stated 
that this was built into the budget just approved. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4629 
 
Resolution Number 4629 – A Resolution Determining That Certain Personal 

Property Is Not Needed For Public Or Municipal Purposes And 
Directing The Sale/Disposal Of Said Surplus Property 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4629 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this is a request by the Police Department to sell some 
surplus vehicles.  He stated that a couple of the vehicles were confiscated. 
 
 Mr. Ammons asked if the revenue from the confiscated vehicles goes to a special 
account. 
 
 Chief Rary stated that the funds are earmarked for law enforcement purposes. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 7 
 

Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4630 
 
Resolution Number 4630 – A Resolution Accepting A Bid For Police Uniform Polo 

Shirts 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4630 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution accepts a bid for Police polo shirts.  He 
indicated that the only bid received was from MAC uniforms and the recommendation is 
to accept this bid. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4631 
 
Resolution Number 4631 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Execute 

And Deliver An Agreement With Rivertree Systems, Inc., For 
Auditing Services 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4631 was by Mr. Pierce and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this request is to renew a 3-year agreement with Rivertree 
for auditing services.  He explained their auditing services and stated that the Finance 
Director has recommended renewal of the agreement. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that Rivertree does a good service for the City. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 8 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4632 
 
Resolution Number 4632 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Accept 

A Proposal From SunTrust Bank Regarding Leasing Of Vehicles And 
Heavy Equipment 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4632 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Resolution allows the City to lease capital items that 
were approved in the budget at the lowest possible interest rate.  He stated that the 
Finance Director obtained several quotes and SunTrust Leasing was the lowest. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4633 
 
Resolution Number 4633 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Perform 

Actions As Necessary In Order To Secure A Performance Bond 
Required By ALDOT 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4633 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City is in the process of doing improvements within 
the Highway 31 rights-of-way and ALDOT requires the filing of a $100,000 penal bond 
to guarantee the improvements.  He stated that the surety company requires the Council 
to approve a Resolution that allows him to sign for the bond. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that he feels this is a lack of cooperation from ALDOT to 
require the bond. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 9 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4634 
 
Resolution Number 4634 – A Resolution Approving A 2 Percent Increase In Salary 

And Wages For Employees 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4634 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this COLA was approved with the budget and the 
Personnel Board requires a separate Resolution to be filed with them in order to initiate 
the increase. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4635 
 
Resolution Number 4635 – A Resolution Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager 

To Execute And Deliver An Agreement For Insurance Brokerage 
Services 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 4635 was by Mr. Ammons and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that the City’s insurance renewals come up in October and this 
is a Resolution to retain the broker at a cost of $7,500. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS (REQUESTING UNANIMOUS CONSENT) 
 
MOTION Motion for unanimous consent for the immediate consideration and action 

on Ordinance 2528, 2529, and 2530 was by Mr. Sharp.  Second was by 
Mr. Henley.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 10 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2528 
 
Ordinance Number 2528 - An Ordinance Finding And Determining That Certain 

Real Property Owned By The Vestavia Hills Board Of Education And 
Under Contract To Purchase By The City Of Vestavia Hills Alabama 
Is No Longer Needed For Public Purposes; To Decide Whether Or 
Not The Exchange Of Property With Northport Holding LLC 
Pursuant To A Project Development And Exchange Agreement 
Between The City Of Vestavia Hills And Northport Will Promote The 
Economic Development Of The City; And To Authorize And Direct 
The Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver The 
Agreement  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2528 was by Mr. Pierce and second 

was by Mr. Henley. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that he explained the terms of this agreement earlier in the 
meeting.  He reiterated that this is part of the planned development of the remainder of 
Patchwork Farms and allows the due diligence to relocate Northport over to the school 
parcel. 
 
 Steve Monk, attorney for the City, stated that he drafted the complex agreement 
and highlighted the terms and provisions within it. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that he has reviewed the agreement and found no problems with 
it and recommended approval stating thatthis is a wonderful opportunity for the City. 
 
 The Mayor stated that an amendment was needed to change the version of the 
agreement and he opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Exhibit B of Ordinance Number 2528 to replace the 

agreement with the newest version of the agreement and to allow some 
minor revisions for “clean-up” subject to the approval of Mr. Monk was 
by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 11 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2529 
 
Ordinance Number 2529 - An Ordinance Determining That Certain Real Property 

Is No Longer Needed For Public Purposes And Authorizing The 
Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase 
Agreement With Cameron General Contractors, Inc., a Nebraska 
Corporation  (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2529 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Sharp. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Ordinance allows due diligence for Cameron to 
purchase a portion of the school parcel for development of a senior resort lifestyle 
facility.  He explained the terms and provisions of the agreement. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2530 
 
Ordinance Number 2530 - An Ordinance Determining That Certain Real Property 

Is No Longer Needed For Public Purposes And Authorizing The 
Mayor And City Manager To Execute And Deliver A Purchase 
Agreement With Daniel Corporation (public hearing) 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 2530 was by Mr. Henley and 

second was by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this Ordinance allows the remaining vacant parts of 
Patchwork Farms to be sold to Daniel Corporation to be developed as planned, pending 
rezoning of said property. 
 
 Doug Neil, Daniel Corporation, was in attendance in regard to the request. 
 
 The Mayor stated that an amendment was needed to change the version of the 
agreement and he opened the floor for a motion. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend Exhibit B of Ordinance Number 2530 replace the 

agreement with the newest version of the agreement and to allow some 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 12 
 

minor revisions for “clean-up” subject to the approval of Mr. Monk was 
by Mr. Pierce and second was by Mr. Henley. 

   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing.  There being no one to address 
the Council concerning this request, he closed the floor and asked for the question. 
 
Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mr. Pierce – yes  Mr. Henley – yes  
   Mr. Sharp – yes  Mr. Ammons – yes  
   Mayor Zaragoza – yes    motion carried. 
 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  
 
 The Mayor stated that the following Resolutions and/or Ordinances will be 
presented at a public hearing at the Council’s next regularly scheduled meeting on 
September 8, 2014 at 5 PM. 

• Resolution Number 4636 – A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver An Agreement With Building And Earth Services For 
Construction Materials Testing And To Authorize Additional Expenditures For 
Construction Of A Parking Lot Adjacent To The Vestavia Hills Library In The 
Forest   (public hearing) 

 
 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked for an update on the construction at City Hall.  Mr. Downes gave 
a brief update. 
 
 Mr. Ammons stated that an ALS ice bucket challenge will be held at the high 
school and invited everyone to go there and participate.   
 
MOTION Motion to adjourn was by Mr. Ammons and second was by Mr. Sharp.  

Meeting adjourned at 6:35 PM. 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor  
 



City Council Minutes 
August 25, 2014, 

Page 13 
 

 
 
Attested by: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 4636 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4636 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH BUILDING AND EARTH 
SCIENCES TO PERFORM CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS TESTING 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF A PARKING LOT ADJACENT TO THE 
VESTAVIA HILLS LIBRARY IN THE FOREST AND TO AUTHORIZE 
ADDITIONAL DESIGN FUNDING FOR SAID PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, on June 23, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4601 to accept bids for construction of a parking lot located adjacent to the Vestavia 

Hills Library in the Forest; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 13, 2014, the City Council adopted and approved Resolution 

Number 4539 to authorize the City Manager to execute and deliver an agreement with Walter 

Schoel Engineering Company, Inc., for design and survey information for above-described 

parking lot in an amount not to exceed $29,000; and 

 WHEREAS, on January 14, 2014, the City Manager executed and delivered an 

agreement with Walter Schoel Engineering Company, Inc., to provide design and survey 

information for the above-detailed parking lot in an amount estimated at $29,000.  A copy of said 

Agreement is marked as “Exhibit A” and is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 

Number 4636 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer, in a memorandum dated August 21, 2014, had indicated 

that unanticipated geotechnical services provided resulted in an overrun of the original estimate 

by $4,250.  A copy of said memorandum is marked as Exhibit B attached to and incorporated 

into this Resolution Number 4636 as though written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Engineer, in the above-described memorandum indicated that 

construction materials testing for construction of the parking lot is required to test compaction of 

materials during construction and presented a proposal submitted by Building and Earth Sciences 

to perform said tests at an amount estimated at $18,000.  A copy of said Agreement is marked as 

Exhibit C and attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4636 as though written 

fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Manager has reviewed said overrun and proposal and 

recommended acceptance as described in the City Engineer’s memorandum; and 



Resolution Number 4636 
Page 2 

 
 WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council have determined it is in the best public interest to 

accept the City Manager’s recommendation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

MANAGER OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and deliver the agreement with 

Building and Earth Sciences marked Exhibit C and attached hereto; and 

2. The City Manager is authorized to expend an additional $4,250 for the design services 

provided by Walter Schoel Engineering, Inc.; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4636 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of September, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4636 
Schoel Agreement



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4636 
Schoel Agreement



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4636 
Schoel Agreement



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4636 
Schoel Agreement



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4636 
Schoel Agreement



Exhibit B - Resolution No. 4636 
Memorandum City Engineer



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



Exhibit C - Resolution No. 4636 
Materials Testing Agreement



RESOLUTION NUMBR 4637 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
AND DELIVER AN AGREEMENT WITH GOODWYN MILLS AND 
CAWOOD FOR PLANNING AND DESIGN SERVICES ON THE 
“SCHOOL SITE” PORTION OF PATCHWORK FARMS 

 
 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to enter into an agreement with 

Goodwyn Mills and Cawood for the purpose of planning and coordination with Northport 

Holdings (NHS) regarding the proposed relocation of the NHS facility along with the 

design of the required extension of Healthy Way to the “School Site” portion of 

Patchwork Farms; and 

2. A copy of said proposal is marked as Exhibit A and is attached to and incorporated into 

this Resolution Number 4637 as though written fully therein; and 

3. This Resolution Number 4637 shall become effective immediately upon approval and 

adoption. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 8th day of September, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
 
       Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
       Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4637



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4637



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4637



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4637



Resolution Number 4639 
Page 1 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 4639 
 

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THE DEMOLITION OF A 
BUILDING OR STRUCTURE LOCATED AT 2253 GREAT ROCK 
ROAD, VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, PARCEL ID# 29-00-25-1-
012-015.000, IN COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 11-40-30 
THROUGH 11-40-36, SECTIONS 11-53B-1 THROUGH 11-53B-16, 
INCLUSIVE, OF THE CODE OF ALABAMA, AND IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE NUMBER 2382 OF THE 
CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; AND CALLING FOR 
SAID DEMOLITION TO BE PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS AND DIRECTING THE CITY ATTORNEY 
AND THE CITY CLERK TO CAUSE THE COST OF SUCH 
DEMOLITION TO BE CHARGED AGAINST THE LAND ON 
WHICH THE BUILDING OR STRUCTURE EXISTS AS A 
MUNICIPAL LIEN OR CAUSE SUCH COST TO BE RECOVERED 
IN A SUIT AT LAW AGAINST THE OWNER OR OWNERS  

 
 WHEREAS, the appropriate Municipal Officials determined that the condition of 
the building or structure located at 2253 Great Rock Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
Parcel I.D. Number 29-00-25-1-012-015.000 is in such a condition as to make it 
dangerous to the life, health, property, morals, safety, or general welfare of the public or 
the occupants. 
  
 WHEREAS,  contemporaneously with the filing of “Finding of Public Nuisance, 
Notice and Order to Remedy and Notice of Lis Pendens” on Brenda Jayne Fields; 
Regions Bank; Firstar Bank, N.A.; Jefferson County Sewer Service Office and 
Birmingham Water Works, a copy of same was sent via certified mail, properly 
addressed and postage prepaid to: 
 

A. All person or persons, firm, association, or corporation last assessing the 
subject property for state taxes to the address on file in the Jefferson County Tax 
Collector’s Office; 

 
B. The record property owner or owners (including any owner or owners of 

an interest in the subject property) as shown from a search of records of the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, at the owner or owners’ last known 
address and at the address of the subject property; 

 
C. All mortgagees of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama, to the address set forth in 
the mortgage or, if no address for the mortgagee is set forth in the mortgage, to the 
address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal Officials; 

 
D.  All lien holders of record as shown from a search of the records of the 

Office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama to the address set forth in 



Resolution Number 4639 
Page 2 

 
the statement of lien or, if no address for the lien holder is set forth in the statement of 
lien, to the address determined to be the correct address by the appropriate Municipal 
Officials; and 

 
E. Such other persons who are otherwise known to the City Clerk or to the 

appropriate Municipal Officials who could have an interest in the subject property; 
 

 WHEREAS, contemporaneously with the filing of the “Finding of Public 
Nuisance, Notice and Order to Remedy, and Notice of Lis Pendens”, a copy of the same 
was posted at or within three feet of an entrance to the building on the subject property 
and posted in three public places located within the City of Vestavia Hills: 1) Vestavia 
Hills Municipal Center, 2) Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, and 3) Vestavia Hills 
Civic Center. 
 
  WHEREAS, notice that the appropriate Municipal Officials have made a finding 
that the subject property is a dangerous building because it is unsafe to the extent that it is 
a public nuisance and is subject to demolition and that a public hearing would be held on 
a certain date was also given to all interested parties and to the public at large by 
publication in the Alabama Messenger. 
  

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama while in regular session on Monday, September 22, 2014 at 5:00 p.m. as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1. A Public Hearing was held on September 22, 2014 at 5:00 p.m. 
and after due deliberation, the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds 
that the structure standing at 2253 Great Rock Road, Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Parcel ID# 
29-00-25-1-012-015.000 is unsafe to the extent of becoming a public nuisance to the 
citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and is due to be condemned and 
demolished in compliance with Sections 11-40-30 through 11-40-36 and Sections 11-
53B-1 through 11-53B-16, inclusive, of the Code of Alabama (1975), and Ordinance 
Number 2382 of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama;  
 
 Section 2. That said demolition is to be performed by the City of Vestavia 
Hills; and 
 
 Section 3. That the City Attorney and the City Clerk are hereby directed to 
cause the cost of such demolition to be charged against the land on which the building or 
structure is located and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the 
assessment or cause such cost to be recovered in a suit at law against the owner or 
owners. 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution Number 4639 
Page 3 

 
 ADOPTED this the 22nd day of September, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CITY CLERK 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY ) 
 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, do hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing is a true and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
legally adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 22nd 
day of September, 2014 while in regular session on Monday, October 8, 2012, and the 
same appears of record in the minute book of said date of said City. 
 

 Witness my hand and seal of office this _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
            
     ____________________________________ 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4639



Resolution Number 4638 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 4638 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL 
ACTIONS NECESSARY TO INSTALL LANDSCAPING AT THE 
ENTRYWAYS OF SICARD HOLLOW ATHLETIC COMPLEX AND TO 
INSTALL FIELD NAMING SIGNS ON ROYAL AND MCCALLUM 
FIELDS 

 
 WHEREAS, the Vestavia Hills Park and Recreation Foundation gave a donation of 

$220,000 to the City of Vestavia Hills for use at both Sicard Hollow Athletic Complex 

(“SHAC”) and McCallum Park; and 

 WHEREAS, an Interoffice Memorandum dated September 2, 2014 from the Public 

Services Director indicated a need for $14,000 in landscaping at the entry of SHAC and 

installation of $6,000 for naming signage at Royal Field and McCallum Field, a copy of which is 

marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution Number 4638 as though 

written fully therein; and 

 WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

Public Services Director’s recommendation and authorize the City Manager to take all actions 

necessary to landscape the entryway to SHAC and purchase/install naming signage at Royal 

Field and McCallum Field with the project funded from the earmarked contribution of the Park 

and Recreation Foundation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to perform all actions necessary to landscape the 

entryways of SHAC and purchase/install signage at Royal Fields and McCallum Field as 

described in the attached Exhibit A to be funded by a portion of the contribution from the 

Park and Recreation Foundation; and 



Resolution Number 4638 
Page 2 

 
2. This Resolution Number 4638 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and 

approval. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 22nd day of September, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit A - Resolution No. 4638



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 1 

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 2531 

 
 TO ESTABLISH THE TIME AND PLACE FOR REGULAR CITY 

COUNCIL MEETINGS; THE PROCEDURE FOR CALLING 
SPECIAL MEETINGS; ESTABLISH A QUORUM; ESTABLISH 
CONDUCT AND PROCEDURES FOR COUNCIL MEETINGS OF 
THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA; REPEALING 
ORDINANCE 2419. 

 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

in session duly assembled and by authority thereof as follows: 

 

GENERAL PURPOSE 

 SECTION 1. That the rules or order of procedure herein contained shall govern 

deliberations and meetings of the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 

 

DATE, TIME AND PLACE OF REGULAR MEETINGS 

 SECTION 2. Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held on the second 

and fourth Mondays of each month at five o’clock (5:00) PM in the Council Chambers at 

Vestavia Hills Municipal Center.  In the event that a regular meeting falls on a holiday or 

the first day of Spring Break, in such event, the Council shall pass a resolution to set a 

new time and date for said hearing.  A regular work session of the City Council shall be 

held every third Thursday of the month, beginning at 5:00 PM.  The Council may, at the 

discretion of the presiding officer, call a work session on the Thursday preceding any 

regular meeting of the City Council beginning at 4:30 PM; notice for said work session 

shall be posted not less than 24 hours prior to the work session as provided in the Open 

Meetings Act. 

 

SPECIAL MEETINGS 

 SECTION 3. Special meetings may be held at the call of the Mayor by serving 

notice on each member of the Council not less than 24 hours before the time set for such 

special meetings; or special meetings may be held as provided by Section 11-43-50, of 

the Alabama Code, 1975, whenever two Council members, or the Mayor request, in 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 2 

 
writing, that the Mayor call such meeting.  Upon the failure or refusal of the Mayor to 

call such meeting when requested, the two Council members making the request shall 

have the right to call such meeting.  Only those items of business for which the special 

meeting is convened shall be voted upon at said special meeting.  All written notice shall 

state the specific purpose or purposes for such special meetings. 

 

PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 SECTION 4. All meetings of the City Council shall be open and public, except 

when the Council meets in executive session as authorized by state law. 

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 SECTION 5. The Council may meet in executive session only for those purposes 

authorized by state law.  When a Council member makes a motion to go into executive 

session for an enumerated purpose, the presiding officer shall put the motion to a vote.  If 

the Council shall unanimously vote in favor of the motion, the body shall then move into 

executive session to discuss the matter for which the executive session was called.  No 

action may be taken in an executive session.  When the discussion has been completed, 

the Council shall resume its deliberations in public. 

 

QUORUM 

 SECTION 6. The attendance of three members of the City Council, at any 

regular or special meeting, is necessary to constitute a quorum. 

 SECTION 7. Every officer, whose duty it is to report at the regular meetings of 

the Council, who shall be in default thereof, may be fined at the discretion of the Council. 

 

AGENDA 

 SECTION 8. Any person, firm, partnership, corporation, association or other 

entity with business or applications to present to the City Council at a regular meeting 

must first make application with the City Clerk by noon on the Wednesday preceding the 

City Council meeting on the following Monday.  The purpose of such applications is to 

provide the public and members of the City Council with advance notice of the 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 3 

 
presentation and to afford them the opportunity to study and investigate the matter prior 

to the meeting.   General comments from the public are invited at the end of each 

meeting. 

 The City Council may waive the requirement of such applications in cases of 

emergency or when the public interest may require it; provided, however, that such 

waiver shall be approved by a majority vote of those City Council members present at the 

meeting. 

 All items of a general or permanent nature or that include the expenditure of 

unbudgeted funds shall be announced at a first reading and heard at the next regularly 

scheduled meeting of the Council or shall be approved by a unanimous consent vote of 

the City Council members present prior to the commencement of said item of business. 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 

 SECTION 9. The order of business shall be as follows: 

 1. A call to order. 

 2. Roll call. 

 3. Invocation and pledge of allegiance. 

 4. Announcements, and special recognitions. 

 5. Presentations 

 6. City Manager Reports 

 7. Mayor/Councilor Reports 

 8. Financial Reports – Finance Director/City Treasurer 

 9. Approval of minutes of prior meeting(s) 

 10. Resolutions, ordinances and orders of old business 

 11. Resolutions, ordinances and orders of new business 

 12.  First Reading; Notice of Public Hearing 

 13. Comments from public 

 14. Motion for Adjournment  

 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 4 

 
MOTIONS 

SECTION 10. 

A. Motions shall be reduced to writing when required by the presiding officer or any 

other member of the City Council. 

B. No member shall speak on the same motion or subject without permission of the 

presiding officer. 

C. No person, not a member of the City Council, shall be allowed to address the 

same while in session without permission of the presiding officer. 

D. Motions to reconsider must be made by a member of the City Council who voted 

with the majority, and at the same or next succeeding meeting of the City 

Council. 

E. A roll call vote shall be taken for each vote taken by the City Council and the vote 

(“yeas” and “nays”) of each member shall be recorded; and any member 

may call for a division of the questions. 

 

RULES OF ORDER 

SECTION 11. 

A. All questions of order shall be decided by the presiding officer of the City Council 

with the right to appeal to the City Council by any members. 

B  The presiding officer of the City Council may, at his discretion, call any member 

to take the chair, to allow him to address the City Council, make a motion 

to discuss any other matter of issue. 

C. Unless otherwise stated, the latest edition of “Robert’s Rules of Order” shall 

govern the conduct of the meetings of the City Council. 

 

ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 

SECTION 12. 

A. All ordinances and resolutions shall be in writing. 

B. No ordinance or resolution intended to be of permanent operation shall be adopted 

by the City Council at the same meeting which it is introduced, unless 

unanimous consent of those present is given for the immediate 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 5 

 
consideration of such ordinance or resolution, such consent to be shown 

by a vote taken by yeas and nays, and the names of the members voting 

shall be entered upon the minutes, and no ordinance or resolution intended 

to be of permanent operation shall become a law, unless on its final 

passage of a majority of the members elected to said City Council of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall vote in its favor. 

C. All ordinances, resolutions or propositions submitted to the City Council which 

require the expenditure of funds shall lie over until the next regular 

meeting; provided, that such ordinances or resolutions may be considered 

earlier by unanimous consent of the City Council; and provided further, 

that this rule shall not apply to the current expenses of, or contracts 

previously made with, or regular salaries of officers, or wages of 

employees of the city or for previously budgeted items. 

D. All ordinances and resolutions intended to be of permanent operation shall be 

subject to the laws of the State of Alabama regarding veto of ordinances 

and resolutions and passage over veto as specifically set forth in Titles 11-

45-3 and 11-45-4, et. seq., Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 

AMENDMENT OF RULES OF PROCEDURE 

 SECTION 13. The procedural rules of the City Council may be altered, amended 

or temporarily suspended if a majority of the members of the City Council present at the 

meeting shall vote in favor to do so. 

 SECTION 14. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared severable.   If 

any provision or portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such 

provision or portion shall be deemed a separate and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder thereof. 

 

ATTENDANCE OF DEPARTMENT HEADS 

 SECTION 15. The following Department Heads and such other officers, 

employees and representatives of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, shall attend all 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 6 

 
meetings of the City Council and shall remain in the Council Room for such length of 

time as the City Council or Mayor may direct: 

A. City Manager 

B. City Clerk 

C. City Treasurer 

D. City Attorney 

All other Department Heads, officers, employees and representatives of the City 

of Vestavia Hills shall attend at the request of the City Manager, Mayor and/or City 

Council or when said Department Head has business or a request to be presented to the 

City Council. 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 SECTION 16. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its 

approval and adoption.  Any and all resolutions and ordinances, which are contrary to or 

in conflict with the terms and provisions of the Ordinance Number 2248, are hereby 

rescinded and repealed. 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of September, 2014. 

 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2531 
Page 7 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2531 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of September, 2014, as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center and the New Merkle House this the ______ day 
of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 



Ordinance Number 2532 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2532 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS 
PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) TO VESTAVIA HILLS 
PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT) WITH REVISIONS. 

 
 WHEREAS, on February 23, 2009, the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama adopted and approved Ordinance Number 2253 to rezone 87 +/- acres 

known as Patchwork Farms pursuant to a certain application dated December 8, 2008 

(revised 2/26/09) to Vestavia Hills Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) subject to the 

development plan included in said application; and 

 WHEREAS, planning charrettes and subsequent land transactions have caused 

the overall development of the PUD and the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best 

public interest to revise said PUD zoning pursuant to a certain application dated July 10, 

2014 and entitled “First Amendment to Patchwork Farm Planned Unit Development 

Zoning Application and Development Plan” a copy of which is marked as Exhibit A 

which is attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance Number 2532 as though written 

fully therein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as 

to change the class of district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia 

Hills PUD (planned unit development) to Vestavia Hills PUD (planned unit 

development) pursuant to Exhibit A, attached;  



 

 
 

City
Patchwo

y of Vestavia
ork Farms “S
a Hills and V

School Parce
Vestavia Hill

el” and Angl
ls Board of E

Ordi

lin Property”
Education, o

inance Number
P

” 
owner(s) 

r 2532 
Page 2 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
A
 
 
 
 
R
C
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPR

 
 

ATTESTED 

Rebecca Leav
City Clerk 

ROVED and

  
  

BY: 

vings 

d ADOPTED this the 22

 Albe
 May

2nd day of Se

erto C. Zarag
yor 

Ordi

eptember 20

goza, Jr. 

inance Number
P

014. 

r 2532 
Page 3 

 

 



Ordinance Number 2532 
Page 4 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2532 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of September 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532



Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 2532







Ordinance Number 2533 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2533 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS B-2 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) 

Vestavia Hills B-2:  

3207 Bearden Court 
Betty A. Thompson and Village Gardens, LLC, owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

A part of the south half of the southeast quarter of the southeast quarter of 
Section 15, Township 18, Range 2 West, more particularly described as 
follows: 
 
Commence 495 feet north of the southwest corner of said quarter-quarter 
section; run thence east 99.19 feet more or less to the point of beginning; 
thence continue east for 195 feet more or less to a point; thence north 165 
feet more or less to a point on the southerly right-or-way line of Bearden 
Court; thence westerly along said right-of-way line 295.16 feet more or 
less to a point on the easterly right-of-way line of Crosshaven Drive; 
thence southerly along said right-of-way line 82.35 feet more 01' less to a 
point; thence east 99,76 feet more or less to a point; thence southerly 
82.37 feet more or less to the point of beginning. 
 

 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of September 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 



Ordinance Number 2533 
Page 2 

 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2533 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of September 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2533 
Page 3 

 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date: AUGUST 14, 2014 

• CASE: P-0414-07 

• REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills B-2. 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  3207 Bearden Ct. 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Fowl Play, Inc. 

• REPRESENTING AGENT:  Charlie Beavers 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  Lot is located at the intersection of Bearden Ct. and 
Crosshaven Dr. 2/3 of lot is already zoned B-2 however, this is not a survey-able area. 
The proposed rezoning would rezone the entire parcel B-2. The applicant proposes a 
Zaxby's restaurant with a drive-thru. The site plan is attached and seems to meet all 
requirements on the zoning ordinance. A site plan is attached. 

• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 
plan, which calls for Retail/Mixed Use. 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation 

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

1 





03. 
ivy 

h.) 
oI 

 

a3JJne 
Id S 

I..noovo 
ONVDA3M., 
A83 

3d1c1 
N3d0 

P/C- ddl 

AVM-0-1H018 
301M .09 

):13d3ne 
Id 9I. 

t71-.S.Z 
10t7=1i1. :TWOS `S30VdS 

`S-111H VIAVIS3A 
N`d1d ld3ON00 

4au 2uuaam2uarai1ea mmm 

StitZ 6SS 90L 
0£17(6SS 90L :d 

ZZ90E VO lie20a 
g aims 'oos 2urppng 

PS WIN s2uTuuat ISSI 
Dui 'queunsuoD 2uuaam2ug 1a1m-3 

1-21 :CCINOZ 

012 SOU 'CZ MOOG MG 

KIM 8kI20 171111 IMMO 

001:EtT0-6I0-1,-4 T-00-62 :lard 

:83dA1143 
91.--\ 

N3-una.. 
3N3 

(dAl) 
3ONVNIM:10 Alla 

83d 301■13d 833d118 

Z-H 43.140Z 

921,6 SOYd 'TZTOZ MOOS ant 
ISE1111. /ADM norm MHOf VILNA° 

000700-670-t-91-00-00 :"era 

uiI 

bi 

9NINA119311 	.LNIOd 

68 MP  

0 	

MD •■■• ■Mo 

0 	0 	roo , 00'96 I (0) ,saz 

 

Tadld 
N3d0 
9/£ - ddl 

 

 

(n) .01'66 (o) .00i 

.ZZ 

MINOZ 

;E►  301Id 'ZIOE )5009 230 

HMIS TIEVI3 IE9NA0 

000600-ETO-t-C1-00-82 

(dAl) 
30NIVNICISO A1.10 

aid 30N3d b33d119 

ml NI 
us. 

-1100V3 
90eNV9A3/1A- 139  

se 0  

I 

(SNOISNRVIG ON1011119 1DYX3 MOJ 
SNIV1d1V211113311H3NV 01213i92) 

'd'S Zg9'£ / S1V3S ZL 
S.A8XVZ G3S0dOeld 

 	I 
	0 	0 

N 
,81. 

4 

nOU 
r- b w 

C 

03 	
NOVE13S 0018 DE 

I 

3dId I 
N3d01 
}  En - ddl —__ 

4t 

-
 

-
 

-
 

.Leinoo N3C1?:IV38 

7 





Ordinance Number 2534 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2534 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING 
ORDINANCE AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, 
AND AS LAST AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF 
DISTRICT ZONING OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS R-
4 TO VESTAVIA HILLS O-1 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills R-4 (residential) 

Vestavia Hills O-1 (office district):  

4019 & 4021 Crosshaven Drive 
Lots 2 & 3, Cahaba Valley Estates, 1st Addition 

Estate of John Michael, owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 22nd day of September 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Alberto C. Zaragoza, Jr. 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 2534 
Page 2 

 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 2534 is a true and 
correct copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of 
Vestavia Hills on the 22nd day of September 2014 as same appears in the official records 
of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 
 



Ordiinance Number
P
r 2534 
Page 3 

 

 



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Date: AUGUST 14. 2014 

• CASE: P-0814-39 

• REQUESTED ACTION:  Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills 0-1. 

• ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Rezoning for 4019 & 4021 Crosshaven Dr 

• APPLICANT/OWNER:  Estate of John Michael 

• REPRESENTING AGENT: 

• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  A duplex currently sits near the intersection of 
Crosshaven Dr. and Green Valley Rd. The applicant wishes to convert the duplex into 
offices. The applicant would add additional parking in the rear and buffering around 
the perimeter. The northernmost ingress/egress will be eliminated. The site plan is 
attached and seems to meet all requirements on the zoning ordinance. 

• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 
plan, which calls for Limited Mixed Use. 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 

1. City Planner Review: I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc. Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law. I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning. 

City Planner Recommendation: No recommendation 

2. City Engineer Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 
issues with this request. 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request. 

1 



 1

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
SYNOPSIS AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION CONCERNING 

APPLICATION BEFORE THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 

Date:     AUGUST 14, 2014 
 

• CASE:  P-0814-39 
 

• REQUESTED ACTION: Rezoning from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills O-1. 
 

•    ADDRESS/LOCATION:  Rezoning for 4019 & 4021 Crosshaven Dr 
 
• APPLICANT/OWNER: Estate of John Michael 
 
• REPRESENTING AGENT:  

 
• GENERAL DISCUSSION:  A duplex currently sits near the intersection of 

Crosshaven Dr. and Green Valley Rd. The applicant wishes to convert the duplex into 
offices. The applicant would add additional parking in the rear and buffering around 
the perimeter. The northernmost ingress/egress will be eliminated. The site plan is 
attached and seems to meet all requirements on the zoning ordinance.  

 
• CAHABA HEIGHTS COMMUNITY PLAN:  The request is consistent with the 

plan, which calls for Limited Mixed Use. 
 

• STAFF REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION: 
 

1. City Planner Review:  I have looked at all of the relevant zoning / 
subdivision requirements related to this proposal, including application, 
notification, setbacks, area of lot development, etc.  Notification has been sent 
to property owners pursuant to Alabama law.  I have reviewed this request and 
find it does meet the minimum requirements of the proposed zoning.    

 
City Planner Recommendation:  No recommendation  
 

2. City Engineer Review:  I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 
3. City Fire Marshal Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no 

issues with this request.  
 

4. Building Safety Review: I have reviewed the application and I have no issues 
with this request.  

 



 2

MOTION  Mr. Wolfe made a motion to recommend Rezoning of 4019 & 4021 Crosshaven 
Dr. from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills O-1 provided the City Engineering comments are 
followed. Second was by Mr. Burrell. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows: 

Mr. Goodwin – yes   Mr. Burrell – yes   
Mr. Gilchrist – yes   Mr. Wolfe – yes          
Mr. Sharp – yes   Mr. House – yes     
Mr. Larson – yes    Motion carried. 

 



0 	 5' 	 10' 	 20' 	 30 .  

GRAPHIC SCALE 

19 0/4,111•=1.02 RCIVIM 

ONNOCIIN SIC! 70 NIEMAN 400 

119 
RR 	5 

td- 
1 ■ 1` 

35' Bld 

• 

• 

•

it)s; 
0 

vB 

3, 

9d0, 
MY,10[1,1.0.1t 11N 1aa. - aMY 

1.3.--0111.1.MPIPuNalt 

0.1farOlf■ Wen 
17.1111.44,0ADOILINO 

TO ACCOLNII TONTOCE 

■2113.4.-0•11. 	 A.M. 

II /011., TORO CROANIVIVIZ 1 04 -701,0 OVJOATTLE 

Crosshaven Dri 
rY  \/ 

e
i 

LANDSCAPE PLAN PREPARED BY: JULIE M. HANES 17;  - 

131400101 
P0814-39//28-22-1-3-22 & 23 
4019 & 4021 Crosshaven Drive 
Rezone to 0-1 
Estate of John Michael 
R4 

IQ 

a. 

B 

4 

0 U  
U 

Plant List 
SHRUBS 

SIX 	SQMM 	 HEIGHT 	MU SPACINQ GOMMHTITE 
75 	 CHINESE FRINGE FLOKER 	 MIN. 1' 	 3 GAL 	 • O.C. MATCHED. FULL 

6 	 VIRGINIA SWEETSPIRE 	 MIN. I' 	 3 GAL 	 5.  O.C. MATCHED, FULL 
IN 	 HELLERI HOLLY 	 MIN. I' 	 3 GAL. 35 O.C. MATCHED. FULL 

TREES 
OTY 	 COMMON 	 HEIGHT 	§5 SPACING  COMME NTS  

31 	 WAR MYRTLE 	 T HT 	 10 O.C. TREE FORM 

3 	 TCNTO CRAPEMYRTLE 	 T HT 	 MULTI-STEM TRUNK 



Future Land Use 
I-..% lh um Rvatdcnnal 

itcsticnted 

Mill  titgh-Dean 14-ndrntral 

Renul/Mmed Uge 

MIN  Limited Milted I.;.e 

Planned Mixed 

Inonlinnnol 	
• 

Parks and ( 1prn Space  

Libetty 
Park/ 

,-, 

I 	i 	\-- 	• 	' 
' / 	•• 	1 

.....  

— ---c 	̀;( 	,...I. 
.,- 	

"..., 	 , 

'a \ 1.‘  ii;.,'F A\ IA 1,  1110t 

	

\ 	 „...., ., 

• `,... 	 • ' ) V 	, 	I I  •'' 

	

.. 	
i  I 	.0 i .`..." • 

..... 

	

/ 	
/ i 

/ `̀ 	 ' 	" \. , 	,,,  
--t--- 	% ‘ 	/ —._......1  

,- 
 

	

/ I 	 ,•"-- 	 . 
/ 

li11:111\.(,11 

,I1:1 1 FAISON (A)L \Tl \ 	
711...1= 

I 	o 

'r 

Figure 4: Future Land Use Map 

Page 14 



30 July 2014 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN 

RE: Protest of Rezoning Classification for Lots 2 and 3, Cahaba Valley Estates, 1 st  Addition 
from Vestavia Hills R-4 to Vestavia Hills 0-1 (4019 and 4021 Crosshaven Drive) 

We have lived at our current home, 4046 Ida Lane, Vestavia, AL 35243, for almost 18 years. We 
believe that to rezone Lots 2 and 3 would not be prudent. This would put an office building next 
to residential housing and it would back up to residential housing. This could adversely affect the 
value of each homeowner's property by lowering the value due to a business being located next 
to or backing up to residential housing. Also Crosshaven Drive is already a very busy street 
without adding an office building which would increase the traffic. 

Therefore we strongly protest rezoning of Lots 2 and 3. 

K i  

Felix T. Hoke,2  

Eliza eth F. Hoke 


	2014_0908CC_A
	2014_0821CC_M ws
	2014_0825CC_M
	Resolution 4636
	Resolution 4637
	Resolution 4639
	Resolution 4638
	Ordinance 2531
	Ordinance 2532
	Ordinance 2533
	Ordinance 2534



